
CITY OF SILVERTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING      
Monday, February 5, 2024 – 6:45 p.m. 

Council Chambers – 421 South Water Street and Zoom  

Americans with Disabilities Act – The City of Silverton intends to comply with the A.D.A. The meeting location 
is accessible to individuals needing special accommodations such as a sign language interpreter, headphones, 
or other special accommodations for the hearing impaired. To participate, please contact the City at 503-
874-2216 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

A copy of the full packet is available on the City’s website at https://silverton.or.us/meetings. In accordance 
with House Bill 2560 and City of Silverton Resolution 22-06, the meeting will be held in a hybrid format: in 
person, and electronically using the Zoom web conference platform. Please submit written comments to 
publiccomment@silverton.or.us by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, February 5, 2024. Comments received will be shared 
with the City Council and included in the record. If you wish to participate through the Zoom web conference 
platform, see meeting information below.   

 
Zoom meeting link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83619478940?pwd=c0F5Sko1MjJ4RTRsKzErYkFGcFBWdz09 
Passcode: 105500 
Webinar ID: 836 1947 8940 
Telephone: 253 215 8782  
 
 

AGENDA 

I. OPENING CEREMONIES - Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
2.1 Minutes from January 8, 2024, City Council Meeting and the January 22, 2024, City 

Council Special Meeting   
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT – This is a business meeting of the City Council.  The City values and 
welcomes public input.  Please address the Council as a whole and not individual Council 
Members.  Do not address staff or members of the audience.  Council action on items brought 
up in Public Comment is limited by the Oregon Open Meeting Law. The Council may direct staff 
to study the matter and reschedule it for further consideration later.  Items on the agenda will not 
be heard or discussed during Public Comment but will be accepted at that place on the agenda. 
Individuals are limited to three (3) minutes. 

IV. SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
 
4.1 Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2023 – Brad Bingeheimer, Partner of Singer Lewak LLP 
 
4.2 Silverton Chamber of Commerce Monthly Report – Executive Director Stacy Palmer 
    

V. DISCUSSION/ACTION 
5.1 League of Oregon Cities, High Functioning City Council Training –League of Oregon 

Cities, Assistant General Counsel Robin Klein 
 
 

https://silverton.or.us/meetings
mailto:publiccomment@silverton.or.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83619478940?pwd=c0F5Sko1MjJ4RTRsKzErYkFGcFBWdz09


5.2 Authorize the City Manager to Amend the Contract with M.L. Houck for $99,816.00 
for the Second Street Improvement Project – Public Works Director Travis Sperle. 

 
5.3 Community Center Lease Discussion – City Manager Cory Misley 
 

VI. CONSENT 
6.1 Civic Center Change Order Request Ratification – Community Development 

Director Jason Gottgetreu 
 
6.2 OLCC Liquor License for “The Curbside Italian Kitchen”, 115 N. Water St., 

Silverton. 
 

VII. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
  

VIII. CITY MANAGER UPDATE 
 
IX. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF SILVERTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
Council Chambers 421 S Water Street and Zoom Web Conference Platform 
 
January 8, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

I. OPENING CEREMONIES – Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call  
 
Mayor Freilinger called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The City Council and staff were present both in person and 
through the virtual meeting platform Zoom. Mayor Freilinger explained the meeting was being held in a hybrid format, 
pursuant to City of Silverton Resolution 22-06, adopted March 7, 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
City Manager Cory Misley, Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu, Police Chief Jim Anglemier, Public 
Works Director Travis Sperle, Assistant to City Manager/City Clerk Jamie Ward.  
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Councilor Hammond moved to approve the December 4, 2023, Regular Session Meeting Minutes, and the December 
18, 2023, Work Session Minutes. Councilor Sutton abstained from the December 18, 2023 minutes due to being 
absent. Councilor Newton seconded.  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Terry Brandon and Jenny Ohren, representing Silverton Senior Center Board, addressed the council. Mr. Brandon 
expressed gratitude for the continued support and the positive working partnership with Council. He distributed 
invitations to a retirement luncheon for Dodie Brockamp scheduled for January 27, 2023, from noon to 3 p.m. Simone 
Stewert will be taking the role of Executive Director starting on January 22, 2023.  
 
 

IV. SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
4.1    Silverton Chamber of Commerce Executive Director, Stacy Palmer 

Mrs. Palmer read the monthly update (Attachment A). Mrs. Plamer indicated it was a quiet month due to the 
visitor center being closed for two weeks. There were 93 phone calls and 128 visits in the month of December. 
 
The Silverton Business Group meets on Wednesdays at 8:00 a.m. at Silver Falls Brewery. Mrs. Palmer 
mentioned that local chamber members and attractions will be featured on an interactive platform called 'Tour 

Present 
 

X 

 Absent 
 
 

  
  
Mayor Jason Freilinger 

X 
 

 
   

Council President Elvi Cuellar Sutton 
 

X 
 

 
 

Jess Miller 
 

X 
 

 
 

April Newton 
 

X 
 

 
 

Eric Hammond  
 

X 
 
  

 
Marie Traeger 

 
X 

 
 

 
Matt Gaitan 

1



Silverton Online.' The tours will enable businesses to showcase their offerings and highlight local attractions. 
They are aiming to launch this initiative in the Spring. 
 
After a competitive application process Business Oregon is pleased to announce a notice of Intent to Award a 
total of $1.825 million in funding from Rural Opportunity Initiative (ROI) program to 19 Oregon communities. 
The City of Woodburn on behalf of the North Marion Business Alliance has been awarded $90,000 to help fund 
business assistance efforts in our region. The grant will focus on connecting local businesses to resources 
including business evaluation and mentorship, providing technical training and providing access to a network of 
regional programs designed to help businesses in our rural area. 
 
Mrs. Palmer wanted to inform residents that the tree lights are still up due to scheduling and weather conflicts. 
They are actively exploring options for scheduling a forklift in the near future. Mrs. Palmer also mentioned that 
there are some health issues at the top of the tree, and she will be working with public works to identify a 
treatment process. 
 
The Silverton Shop Hop received a total of 596 visits to local businesses. High-traffic merchants appreciated the 
new format, but those with lower foot traffic numbers didn’t fare as well. Despite an increase in the number of 
forms turned in this year compared to the last two years, the majority of participants were from Silverton, 
although there were also participants from eight outlining communities.  
 
Mrs. Palmer informed the Council about two upcoming events. The Annual Stout & Ale Festival is scheduled 
for January 27, 2024, at the Festhalle in Mt. Angel, Oregon. This event celebrates and honors the life of Jason 
Franz, a beloved community volunteer. It serves as a fundraiser for the Jason Franz fund, which grants 
scholarships to kids who enjoy outdoor recreation but can't afford to participate. The event strongly supports the 
Silver Falls Mountain Bike Club and Fall Line Bike Shop. Tickets can be purchased in advance at 
www.fallinestoutandale.com for $15, or $20 at the door. The 2024 First Citizen Banquet is on Saturday, February 
17, 2024, at the Oregon Garden. A list of nominations should be released in the coming weeks. 

 
4.2   Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT)/City Working Relationship Overview was pulled and will be 

rescheduled to January 22, 2024.  
 
 
V. DISCUSSION/ACTION 
5.1    Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-1 to R-5 at 602 Eureka Avenue 

Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu gave a brief overview of the history of the application 
process stating the application was submitted on October 10, 2023, requesting a zone change for 602 Eureka 
Avenue to change the zoning from R-1 to R-5. Notice was mailed out to property owners within 700 feet of the 
site on October 25, 2023. The notice was placed in the Statesman Journal during the November 1, 2023, edition. 
The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended for Council to deny the application at the November 14, 
2023, meeting which included a Public Hearing, City Council reviewed the application during a Public Hearing 
at the December 4, 2023, meeting. Council then closed the Public Hearing and directed staff to prepare an 
Ordinance and bring it back to the January meeting to approve.  

  
Councilor Miller moved to have the first reading of Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-1 to 
R-5 at 602 Eureka Avenue by title only. Councilor Newton seconded.  No discussion. Moton Passes 4-3-0 Ayes: 
Eric Hammond, April Newton, Jess Miller, and Jason Freilinger. Nays: Elvi Cuellar-Sutton, Marie Traeger 
 
City Manager Misley read Ordinance 24-01 by title only. 
 
Councilor Miller moved to pass Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-1 to R-5 at 602 Eureka 
Avenue on its first reading by title only. Councilor Newton seconded.  
 

2

http://www.fallinestoutandale.com/


Councilor Sutton expressed her opposition to approving this ordinance for several reasons, citing concerns 
related to traffic and pedestrian safety. She believes that endorsing this ordinance would establish a precedent 
for future development in Silverton and argues that it does not align with Silverton's vision. 
 
Councilor Newton shares Councilor Sutton's sentiments, expressing the belief that rezoning is unnecessary for 
the area, as it is already designated for twenty-one (21) new homes. She sees this as the city's means to address 
House Bill 2001 and its associated challenges. Councilor Newton emphasizes the importance of developing a 
strategic plan for the future and reiterates her support for the Planning Commission's decision to deny the zone 
change. 
 
Councilor Gaitan assessed the land and the substantial work required for its development, taking into account 
the city's need for affordable housing. He finds a disconnect in how this development aligns with the City's long-
term plan for affordable housing. This is attributed not only to the necessary infrastructure investments but also 
to the support required for pedestrians and residents within the development. Due to these considerations, he 
cannot, in good faith, approve the change. 
 
Councilor Miller expressed confidence in prior discussions about the minimal environmental impact on water 
flow resulting from the impermeable surfaces change. He also found assurance in the traffic studies conducted 
and anticipates a future review of the actual development and its details. Councilor Miller believes these steps 
are necessary before development can commence on the land, providing the Council with another opportunity 
to delve into specifics such as connectivity and traffic flow measures. He is in support of this change.  
 
Councilor Traeger expressed a desire to address existing traffic issues in the downtown core, emphasizing 
concerns that the proposed development will exacerbate the current problem. She is reluctant to add more 
challenges to those already faced by the community. She also fears that this could potentially open that area up 
for a mobile home site. 
 
Councilor Newton sought clarification on whether there was specific knowledge of a mobile home being planned 
for the area or if the concern arose merely because it is permitted in an R-5 zone. 
 
Councilor Traeger clarified that the allowance for mobile homes comes with zone changes within developments. 
 
Councilor Sutton expressed full support for identifying locations for affordable housing, emphasizing the 
strategic placement of R-5 zones as crucial. She highlighted the importance of considering the specific impact 
on the community, particularly in the designated area, including population concentration and safety concerns.  
 
Councilor Hammond believes that the R-5 designation, with its traffic calculation methods, indicates potentially 
less traffic compared to R-1. This consideration leads him to view the proposed use for this space as acceptable. 
 
Councilor Newton clarified that her vote in the previous decision was based on the applicant meeting the legal 
requirements. While she personally would prefer leaving the land undeveloped, she acknowledges the potential 
for entry-level housing in a denser R-5 zone. She also recognizes that this zoning allows for more communal 
and lawn space. 
 
Council went on record to disclose any ex parte contact they may have had. 
 
Mayor Freilinger has received twelve (12) potential requests for ex parte contact which he did not respond or 
interact with on both sides of the issue. 
 

3



Councilor Sutton reported five points of contact but clarified that they have not influenced her vote, and she has 
not responded to them. 
 
Councilor Traeger has received emails, and it has not influenced her vote either.  
 
Mayor Freilinger explained that his vote was influenced by incidents over the past ten (10) to eleven (11) years. 
He expressed the belief that denying this application might not hold up before the Land Use Board of Appeals 
(LUBA) based on the merits of the case. He feels the applicant has met the standards for development, and not 
allowing it, given the information available, could lead to an overturn on appeal. Additionally, he noted the 
potential high cost of legal fees should Council pursue this route. He also highlighted the housing need analysis 
conducted a few years ago. Mayor Freilinger emphasized that there is a current housing needs analysis being 
conducted for every city over ten thousand (10,000) statewide. This new analysis is set to take effect in terms of 
implementation requirements on January 1, 2025, and he anticipates that the numbers might change, potentially 
significantly. He expressed the view that relying on the current analysis might not be appropriate, given the 
forthcoming changes. The traffic calculations matter because statistical information like that is based on 
engineering studies and is the only factor that LUBA is going to look at. It is the only factor that ODOT is going 
to look at. Things that are subjective in nature, they will not consider. The merits of what he is hearing, as far as 
why Council should deny the application, are subjective in nature. Because of the state legislature's determination 
of how clear and objective standards are met then it will always err on the side of increased housing, he feels the 
applicant has met those. Zoning changes are not necessarily bound by this rule but what he has seen and heard 
LUBA is applying that to zoning changes, especially when they are talking about changing from a single-family 
zone to a slightly denser single-family zone. He understands the concerns but questions what the solution is. He 
feels we need to put in better standards that are clear and objective and ultimately, we cannot achieve that until 
the City goes through a Master Plan for the City of Silverton.  
 
Councilor Sutton acknowledges that the zone change is a city decision, and while LUBA can push back, she 
believes that in this case, it is acceptable. She is of the opinion that this area lacks sufficient road space for people 
to ride or walk safely. 
 
Councilor Traeger expresses support for and confidence in the Planning Commission's decision. She believes 
that the decision was grounded in clear research and was not influenced by subjective factors. 
 
Councilor Gaitan sought clarification, questioning whether the presence of clearer standards before this request 
would have potentially averted the need for the zone change in the first place. 
 
Mayor Freilinger stated that he couldn't provide a definitive answer because the City has not undergone that 
exercise. He emphasized that the impact of standard changes on this matter cannot be determined conclusively. 
To address such situations, the City would need to adopt clear and objective standards and apply them 
accordingly.    
 
Motion Passes 4-3-0 Ayes: Eric Hammond, April Newton, Jess Miller, and Jason Freilinger. Nays: Elvi Cuellar-
Sutton, Marie Traeger, and Matt Gaitan. Ordinance 24-01 will be brought back for a second reading during the 
January 22, 2024, City Council meeting due to not passing by a unanimous vote on its first reading.   

 
 
5.2 Review of Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) Submitted for the Development of Affordable Housing on the 

Westfield Site. 
Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu presented the staff report, noting that the City of 
Silverton had advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the development of affordable housing on 

4



the Westfield Site. The City received four (4) Statements of Qualifications (SOQ). The Request for Offers 
(RFO) process aims to generate a shortlist of potential partners invited to submit a development proposal. 
The Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) reviewed the SOQ’s and recommended that the Council select 
DexNW, Ink Built, REACH, and FHDC as the shortlist of potential partners to be invited to submit a 
proposal. 
 
Councilor Traeger sought clarification on the history of this process. She inquired whether the Affordable 
Housing Task Force had developed a plan and formally approached the City to inquire about using the 
Westfield property for the construction of affordable homes. 
 
Director Gottgetreu explained that this process commenced in 2018 when the City explored the possibility 
of utilizing a section of the Westfield site for an affordable housing development. However, the process did 
not progress at that time, making this the second attempt to advance the project. 
 
Councilor Newton requested clarification on the criteria for not selecting the top two (2) proposals. After 
reviewing the proposals and the minutes from the Affordable Housing Task Force meeting, she expressed 
difficulty in understanding the reasons for eliminating two (2) options. She emphasized that one of them 
provided detailed specifics on how they intended to secure funding. She feels that all four (4) supplied good 
SOQ’s. 
 
Director Gottgetreu explained that the Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) believed that all four (4) 
applicants had the potential to undertake a commendable project. However, the AHTF determined that the 
top two applicants presented a product that aligns more closely with the style and vision for the City. 
Nonetheless, the other two applicants showcased strong qualifications and Statements of Qualifications 
(SOQs) and were recognized as capable and strong potential partners. 
 
Councilor Newton believes that, despite the substantial effort required for these potential partners to proceed 
to the next step, it would be prudent to invite all four (4) and assess the outcomes. 
 
Councilor Traeger concurs with Councilor Newton that all four (4) organizations are commendable. 
However, she expresses concern about the community's ability to support a project of this nature, especially 
when targeting sixty (60) percent AMI or below. She believes these falls within the median of low-income 
housing. Considering the current status of industrial businesses, such as Bruce Pac being vacant, she is 
apprehensive about the availability of jobs for those intending to reside there. Councilor Traeger asserts that 
the community needs to strengthen before undertaking such a project. 
 
Councilor Sutton holds a differing opinion from Councilor Traeger and believes that the community strongly 
needs this project and that it aligns with the right direction. She expresses enthusiasm for the initiative, 
considering it a fitting use for R-5 zoning. Councilor Sutton highlights the open nature of the area with fewer 
traffic issues in this corner of the town. She emphasizes that delaying the project could result in more 
significant future efforts to address affordable housing needs. She also suggests inviting all four (4) 
organizations to submit a proposal. 
 
Mayor Freilinger emphasized that one of the significant driving factors for people is affordable housing. The 
Chamber has been vocal about the community's desperate need for affordable housing. A large portion of 
Bruce Pac employees had to commute because they couldn't afford to live here, and there's strong suggestive 
evidence that this affordability issue may have contributed to their departure, resulting in a negative impact 
on the community. 
 

5



Councilor Gaitan highlights a crucial missing piece in this puzzle—the absence of Silverton's Economic 
Development Plan. He expresses the need for a clear understanding of how the city plans to generate more 
jobs, providing residents with opportunities for employment. Councilor Gaitan emphasizes the historical 
trend of Silverton being a bedroom community with residents commuting for work, and he seeks assurance 
about the city's plan to address this aspect. 
 
Councilor Hammond expresses agreement with Councilor Gaitan and supports the idea of inviting all four 
(4) organizations to submit a proposal for development. While acknowledging the potential benefits of an 
Economic Development Plan, he believes there is already sufficient demand for affordable housing. 
Councilor Hammond suggests that the current need could potentially fill the housing project without the 
immediate necessity of a comprehensive Economic Development Plan. 
 
Mayor Freilinger sought clarification from staff regarding the potential concerns of inviting all four (4) 
organizations back. He referenced discussions during the Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) meeting 
about the costs associated with progressing to step two (2) and creating a Request for Proposals (RFP). In the 
AHTF discussions, there was an emphasis on the need to narrow the field to manage these costs. Mayor 
Freilinger inquired whether staff sees any issues with not trimming the field and proceeding to send the 
invitation to all four (4) organizations. 
 
City Manager Misley shared his perspective, stating that if the goal is to have the maximum number of options 
available, inviting all four (4) organizations would achieve that result. He acknowledged that it would require 
more time for reviewing and selecting proposals. However, he emphasized the intention to be considerate 
and intentional about not wanting anyone to waste their time. Given the qualifications of all four, and the 
ability to discern nuances between them, he sees no reason why the city couldn't move forward with all four 
(4) submitting a full-blown proposal, particularly for this specific site. 
 
Director Gottgetreu explained that the firms will have access to the minutes from the Affordable Housing 
Task Force (AHTF) and the minutes from this meeting. They can review where they stand among the top or 
bottom two, using that information to make an informed decision about whether it's worthwhile to move 
forward to the next step. 
 
Councilor Traeger asked what the process is for the next step. 
 
Director Gottgetreu clarified the process, emphasizing that the Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) will 
evaluate the Request for Proposals (RFPs) and provide a recommendation to the City Council. The Council 
will then make a decision based on the AHTF's reviews. Gottgetreu noted that the completion of this project 
is not anticipated in the near future, with a projected timeline ranging from two (2) to three (3) years. The 
overall process involves a thorough review of the RFP by the AHTF, followed by Council selection and 
entering into an agreement with the top proposal firm. This agreement phase includes detailing 
responsibilities, after which the substantial work begins—securing funding, designing the project, and 
navigating the public process. The design will undergo scrutiny at the Planning Commission based on the 
finalized design. 
 
City Manager Misley concurred with Director Gottgetreu regarding the timeline, emphasizing the 
competitiveness of funding cycles. He highlighted that numerous communities are in need and seeking to 
add housing units, making the funding process highly competitive. While there are additional funding streams 
to some extent, they fall short of meeting the overwhelming demand and need for affordable housing. Misley 
mentioned the potential for a housing needs analysis to take a more holistic approach, examining a menu of 

6



options. Such an analysis could outline the desired trajectory for the City and the community over the next 
ten (10) years, along with the necessary steps to reach those goals. 

Councilor Sutton asked where the UGB and the County line start as far a jurisdiction. 

Chief Anglemier stated it was just past the Westfield site. Almost directly across from the Oregon Garden 
entrance. 

Mayor Freilinger, as a member of the Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF), shared insights into the 
factors considered when selecting the top two candidates. The evaluation included scrutiny of their funding 
sources and program focus, with attention to a specific cultural aspect. Given the significance of this 
potentially being the only affordable housing project in Silverton for this generation, there was a discussion 
about how broad or narrow the focus should be. Another critical factor was the aesthetic aspect, considering 
the look and design of their previous projects. Mayor Freilinger expressed openness to receiving proposals 
from all candidates but invited comments from the audience. 

Director Gottgetreu clarified that the Request for Proposals (RFP) can explicitly outline Silverton's vision, 
providing a clear and definitive request. Potential candidates can then assess whether their proposals align 
with Silverton's vision and what they can offer. 

Dana Smith, Silverton Oregon, 
Ms. Smith mentioned that she has been a part of the Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) since its 
inception and brings extensive experience in reviewing these types of proposals. In assessing the four (4) 
teams, she believes it's evident that the two recommended by the AHTF are likely to be the top choices. 
While acknowledging the excellent qualifications of the other two teams, she feels they are in a different 
league and may not fully align with the City's vision for the property, which includes being multigenerational, 
multicultural, and catering to a variety of incomes. She emphasized that the ability to meet these diverse 
needs was more convincingly demonstrated by the top two (2) recommended teams. 

Additionally, she conveyed that the AHTF prefers to conduct in-person interviews with all applicants to 
thoroughly discuss the proposals. The preference is for a group meeting involving both the Task Force and 
the Council, allowing everyone to participate in the same discussion simultaneously and arrive at a unified 
decision. Given the complexity of meaningful interviews, she expressed concerns about managing the 
process effectively with four (4) applicants. 

Councilor Sutton noted the possibility that all four (4) applicants may not submit proposals. She directed a 
question to Ms. Smith, inquiring whether, in the event that three (3) applicants submit proposals, that would 
be considered a satisfactory compromise. 

City Manager Misley suggested the possibility of applying a rating scale and considering only the top two 
applicants for interviews, streamlining the process and ensuring a focused evaluation.  

Stacy Palmer, Silverton Oregon Chamber of Commerce, 
Ms. Palmer expressed her belief that the construction of this affordable housing project would contribute to 
the attractiveness of Silverton for large industrial companies. She mentioned ongoing talks about expansion 
from Forrest River and Willamette Valley Pie Co. However, she highlighted a concern about the potential 
shortage of workers. Ms. Palmer feels that having affordable housing would appeal to individuals, 
encouraging them to move to Silverton and work in the area. She also expressed the view that many people 

7



are leaving their family homes to downsize into smaller facilities that they may be able to afford. This 
transition creates opportunities for more individuals to enter the housing market and experience 
homeownership. Stating this is a supply and demand issue.  

 
Councilor Traeger asked how we are attracting business. 
 
Ms. Palmer emphasized that this is a valid concern for any small community. Historically, Silverton has seen 
60-65 percent of its workforce leave, an ongoing trend due to the absence of large employers. This continuous 
outward migration leads to a widening demographic gap, with more professionals, economically advantaged 
individuals, and middle to low-income residents leaving for opportunities elsewhere. The high cost of living 
in Silverton contributes to this negative spiral, posing a challenge for the community. 
 
Lucenda Campbell Silverton, Oregon, 
Ms. Campbell would like to know if there is a way to put a map together to see the proposed site. She would 
also like to see better public transportation, a pool, a recreation center, and ADA housing.  
 
Mayor Freilinger stated the City has a map and could provide that for her. 
 

 A motion was by Councilor Sutton to invite all four (4) statement of qualifications submissions to be invited 
to submit a proposal for the development of the affordable housing project on the Westfield Site. Councilor 
Newton seconded. No discussion. Motion Passed 

 
5.3 Resolution 24-01 – A Resolution Disbanding the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Task Force and the 

Homeless and Housing Task Force. 
City Manager Misley clarified that this recommendation originated from the council during the December 
18, 2023, work session. He pointed out that there was an amended resolution specifying the repeal of the 
previous Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) resolutions. Misley continued, stating that the City 
recognizes the enduring importance of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, as well as Homeless and Housing 
issues. Even though the task force is disbanding, he assured that the city remains dedicated to addressing 
these concerns at both policy and administrative levels. 
 

 A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to adopt Resolution 24-01 Disbanding the Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion and the Homeless and Housing Task Forces as amended. Councilor Miller seconded. No 
discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

VI. CONSENT 
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to approve the Consent Agenda including agenda items 6.1-6.4. 
Councilor Newton seconded. No discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  

6.1  OLCC Liquor License for Emerald Events Silverton. 
6.2 Civic Center Change Order Ratification.  
6.3 Approve the Contract with Hazen Sawyer, DPC Subject to Legal Revisions and Authorize the City 

Manager to Sign. 
6.4 Authorize the City Manager to Amend the Contract with Firewood Design Group for $30,000. And 

Amend the Contract with ML Houck for $233,000. For the Second Street Improvement Project. 
 

VII. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS   
7.1 Appointments to the Planning Commission and the Historic Landmark Commission.  

8



Mayor Freilinger mentioned that he is working with staff on creating a uniform process for committees and 
commissions in the future. He indicated that there may be a time were nominations happen once a year and 
members could potentially be sworn in during the January meeting. 

   
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to approve the reappointment of Morry Jones and to appoint Derek 
Evans to the Planning Commission for a term of four (4) years ending December 31, 2027. Councilor Newton 
seconded.  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to approve the reappointment of Sherry Hoefel and to appoint Allison 
Hurley to the Historic Landmarks Commission for a term of three (3) years ending December 31, 2026. 
Councilor Newton seconded.  No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to approve the reappointment of Fred Parkinson to the Historic 
Landmarks Commission for a term of two (2) years ending December 31, 2025. Councilor Newton seconded.  
No discussion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
VIII. CITY MANAGER UPDATE 

City Manager Misley updated Council on upcoming meetings stating Planning Commission will meet on 
January 09, 2024, the Environmental and Urban Tree Committee meet on January 16, 2024, the Affordable 
Housing on January 16, 2024, City Council Work Session on January 22, 2024, Transportation Advisory 
Committee meet on January 29, 2024, an Urban Renewal Advisory Committee meeting on January 30, 2024, 
a Urban Renewal Agency meeting on February 05, 2024, the City Council Regular Meeting on February 05, 
2024, and City Council Goals Setting on February 06, 2024.  
 
Misley went on to say that he, along with Councilor Newton, Silverton Police Chief Jim Anglemier, and Police 
Captain Todd Engstrom, had a follow-up meeting with Sheltering Silverton. The meeting aimed to discuss the 
partnership between the City, the Police Department, and their service provision supporting members of the 
Silverton community. Misley expressed that, from certain perspectives, the meeting involved retrospectively 
examining various situations that had raised questions. However, he emphasized that everyone left the meeting 
with a positive outlook. Silverton Police Captain Todd Engstrom will be the point person as it relates to a staff 
liaison between Sheltering Silverton and the Police Department to assist with coordinating and collaborating 
as effectively as possible. Misley noted that there are many layers of Sheltering Silverton settling into their new 
location and the City is going to continue to work with them to try and support them as much as possible.  

 
Misley also met with Mayor Freilinger and Republic Services, the City’s solid waste service franchisee, to 
discuss having a representative come to the Environmental Management and Urban Tree Committee and the 
City Council meeting in February. The purpose is to discuss the rate structure and likely a rate request that will 
be coming through in the near future. 
 
Misley stated City Staff enjoyed a holiday lunch at the Senior Center, which was a nice event allowing everyone 
to get to know each other a little more.  
 
Misley has been meeting with Ashleigh Dougill, who is the City’s representative at Beery, Elsner & Hammond, 
LLP, the City’s legal firm. They are discussing the potential of her coming down in February to meet with the 
Council as well as work with the management team on some internal processes.  
 
Misley wanted to thank Code Enforcement Office Sean Farris for his over ten years of service with the City. 
Sean put in his resignation but maybe coming back in to assist as a part time driver for the Silverton Trolley.   

 

9



IX. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
Councilor Gaitan shared insights from a recent trip to Snoqualmie, Washington, highlighting a program that 
assists the senior living community with various needs, including health and safety, as well as transportation 
support. He expressed a desire to implement a similar program in their community. 
 
Councilor Gaitan inquired about the communication strategy for updates on the Civic Center project, expressing 
difficulty in finding information on the City's website. City Manager Misley explained that staff have 
established an internal meeting regarding the move and operational shifts. He assured council that an update 
would be presented at upcoming City Council meetings and that monthly updates would continue, particularly 
as the construction nears completion and the opening approaches. 

 
Councilor Traeger asked about the discrepancy in the numbers between the change order and the budget 
document for the Civic Center project. Community Development Director Gottgetreu explained that the 
difference is attributed to the retainage. She is also working on the Civic Center grand opening celebration 
and would like to know what the budget is.  
 
Councilor Miller was disappointed the ODOT presentation is rescheduled and would like to see about stating 
a public education campaign regarding road safety and unsafe intersections in town.  

 
Councilor Newton agrees with Councilor Miller that something needs to be done soon to assist with unsafe 
areas in town and to help with public awareness.  
 
Councilor Sutton wanted to remind everyone that this is an election year and feels that it may be best for 
those interested in running for Council to consider start by joining a committee. She believes it would have 
been a good step prior to getting elected to the Council and would have helped with learning the basics of 
how city government works. 
 
Mayor Freilinger shared a message he received from a resident regarding an intersection flag program they 
observed in a different community. He stated he will share those pictures with staff.  
 
City Manager Misley mentioned that while ODOT may not have all the answers regarding a flag program, he 
is interested in bringing in another partner from the County. This partner could offer different statistics and 
potentially provide the council with a pedestrian safety overview. Another strategy discussed was securing 
funding during goal setting to provide reflective vests to residents interested in participating in the program. 
Misley emphasized the importance of not rushing to be reactive but ensuring that necessary measures are 
taken for long-term changes. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to adjourn.  Meeting Adjourned at 8:43 p.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted by: 
/s/Jamie Ward – Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk 

10



Attachment A

11



12



CITY OF SILVERTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  
Council Chambers 421 S. Water St. and Zoom Web Conference Platform 
 
January 22, 2024, 6:30 p.m. 
 

I. OPENING CEREMONIES – Call to Order & Roll Call  
Mayor Freilinger called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The City Council and staff were present both in person and 
through the virtual meeting platform Zoom. Mayor Freilinger explained the meeting was being held in a hybrid format, 
pursuant to City of Silverton Resolution 22-06, adopted March 7, 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
City Manager Cory Misley, Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu, Public Works Director Travis 
Sperle, Chief of Police Jim Anglemier, Captain Todd Engstrom, Assistant to City Manager/City Clerk Jamie Ward 

 
II. Public Comment 

Gregory J. Schmitz, Silverton Oregon, 
Mr. Schmitz, a local business owner, expressed concern about the increasing traffic in the downtown area. He 
urged the Council to assess the current traffic situation and explore potential solutions before undertaking any 
new projects. 
 

III. Discussion/Action 
3.1 Second Reading of Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-1 to R-5 at 602 Eureka 

Avenue. 
 

Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu explained that the reason for hearing this during a non-
regular meeting was to comply with the one hundred and twenty (120) day requirement. This marks the second 
reading of this Ordinance, with the first reading taking place at the January 8, 2024, meeting. 
 
Councilor Sutton sought clarification on the number of days the application has to be read for approval and the 
current status of the reading schedule. Director Gottgetreu clarified that it has to be done within 120 days from 
when the application is submitted and deemed complete to render a decision. 
 
Councilor Newton moved to have the second reading of Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-
1 to R-5 at 602 Eureka Avenue by title only. Councilor Miller seconded.   

Present 
 

X 

 Absent 
 
 

  
  
Mayor Jason Freilinger 

X 
 

 
   

Council President Elvi Cuellar Sutton 
 

X 
 

 
 

Jess Miller 
 

X 
 

 
 

April Newton 
 

X 
 

 
 

Eric Hammond  
 

X 
 
  

 
Marie Traeger 

 
X 

 
 

 
Matt Gaitan 

13



 
Councilor Traeger officially stated that she stands by her decision and does not support the proposed change. 
 
Motion Passes 4-3-0 Ayes: Eric Hammond, April Newton, Jess Miller, and Jason Freilinger. Nays: Elvi Cuellar-
Sutton, Marie Traeger, Matt Gaitan 
 
City Manager Misley read Ordinance 24-01 by title only. 
 
Councilor Newton moved to pass Ordinance 24-01 – Approving a Zone Change from R-1 to R-5 at 602 Eureka 
Avenue on its second and final reading by title only. Councilor Newton seconded. No discussion. Moton Passes 
4-3-0 Ayes: Eric Hammond, April Newton, Jess Miller, and Jason Freilinger. Nays: Elvi Cuellar-Sutton, Marie 
Traeger, Matt Gaitan. 

IV. Discussion 
4.1 ODOT/City Working Relationship Overview 

Mayor Freilinger introduced Anna Henson, Area 3 Manager for the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT), Region 2. Ms. Henson oversees projects in Marion, Yamhill, and Polk Counties for ODOT and local 
agencies. She highlighted that ODOT is currently facing significant budget challenges, reflecting in the condition 
of highways. The budget shortfall is attributed to issues related to hybrid vehicles and a reduction in gas tax 
revenue over the past few years. ODOT statewide is actively seeking a solution to the budget problem by 
exploring a potential user tax fee. This fee aims to ensure that everyone utilizing the roads contributes their share 
of the maintenance costs. Ms. Henson explained that due to these budget challenges, the State Transportation 
Implementation Plan (STIP) portfolio project file is currently much smaller than it has ever been. However, she 
expressed hope that a solution will be found, leading to increased funding in the future. 
 
Ms. Henson serves as the ODOT representative for the Mid-Willamette Valley Area Commission on 
Transportation (ACT), a group of elected officials that meets monthly to discuss budget allocations. She 
extended an invitation to Council members and staff to participate in these meetings, emphasizing the significant 
discussions on grant opportunities. Ms. Henson believes that grant funding is a crucial avenue for securing 
resources in small communities. Additionally, she expressed a willingness to potentially assist with grant writing 
efforts. 
 
Ms. Henson provided further information about the Salem offices, mentioning the presence of a technical center 
housing design, roadway, environmental, and hydraulic engineers responsible for project development. She 
highlighted that Keith Blair wrote about the Church St. and Hwy 213 intersection, expressing regret that the 
intersection did not score very high on the safety index. 
 
Mayor Freilinger sought clarification on the meaning of "not scoring well" and whether it indicates that the 
intersection was poorly or highly performing.   
 
Ms. Henson stated that in the last study conducted, the Church St. and Hwy 213 intersection received a score of 
221 on the priority index. This indicates that it is not high on the list of dangerous intersections, as there have 
been only a handful of accidents, and none of them involved pedestrians. She emphasized that this score does 
not mean nothing can be done; it simply reflects that, due to safety funding being based on priority, it is lower 
on the list. 

City Manager Misley added that House Bill 2017, which provided a significant infusion of 5.3 billion dollars, 
assisted in addressing decades of delayed infrastructure ODOT funding. However, it also brought changes in 
how these funds flow into local jurisdictions and regions. Drawing from his experience in Central Oregon, he 
noted that the ACT had more input in identifying priorities and allocating funds within their region before 

14



House Bill 2017. The bill increased funding but reduced the say that local jurisdictions and regions have in 
allocating those funds. Misley explained that not only are they working with less funds for maintenance, but 
there are major priorities that are not earmarked. Returning to the Church St. and Hwy 213 intersection, City 
Manager Misley emphasized that a low score on the list does not preclude them from partnering with ODOT 
to conduct further studies and potentially make improvements in the area. He suggested that the City prepare a 
list of potential areas that need the most improvements to be ready for partnerships. 
 
Ms. Henson mentioned that her coworker, the Active Transportation Liaison, Jenna Berman, suggested that 
Silverton may be a good candidate for a Small Communities Urban Design Verification (UDV). A UDV 
involves studying the area with public input and surveys to determine what improvements the community 
would like to see. Ms. Henson stated that conducting something like this would position the City for potential 
funding opportunities.   
 
Councilor Traeger asked about the length of the list of important intersections and inquired about the position 
of 221 from the bottom. Ms. Hanson answered that she didn’t know the exact number of dangerous intersections 
but would research it and get back to Council.  
 
Councilor Sutton inquired if a pedestrian must be hit for an area to move up on the priority list. She expressed 
the need to ensure that traffic studies are conducted during peak hours for accuracy. Ms. Hanson stated that, or 
a lot of serious accidents can move an intersection up on the safety list. Ms. Hanson stated that she may be able 
to request a traffic count for that intersection. 
  
City Manager Misley clarified that ODOT typically focuses on efficiently and rapidly moving people in places 
and may not be accustomed to working in urban environments. He suggested initiating discussions with ODOT 
about entrances to the town and different transition speeds or intersections, such as Hobart and Hwy 214, which 
might yield more favorable results than focusing on Church St. and Hwy 213. Misley also noted that the City 
has adhered to the same paradigm for around 100 years with Hwy 213 and Hwy 214 running through the City. 
However, he proposed looking forward to what works best for the next 100 years, acknowledging that it may 
not resemble the past. City Manager Misley emphasized the importance of closely collaborating with the 
transportation system and maintaining effective communication to generate momentum. 
 
Councilor Miller asked if the UDV study would take new development and transit into consideration. Ms. 
Hanson answered she believed it does encompass all modes of transportation.   
 
Councilor Miller inquired about the possibility of implementing the "20 is plenty" campaign to change the 
speed in residential areas, even if the road is under the jurisdiction of ODOT. Ms. Hanson did not have the 
answer to that question but would get back to him.  
 
City Manager Misley gave a brief explanation of what “20 is plenty” means in local jurisdictions.  
 
Mayor Freilinger inquired about Silverton's ability to address and improve areas, add lights, signage and make 
updates to a road owned by ODOT. Ms. Henson stated that, in her belief, those things cannot be done without 
obtaining a proper ODOT permit and would have to meet State standards and ODOT signs have to be designed 
by ODOT. City Manager Misley added that lighting is a significant issue in Silverton. 
 
Councilor Gaitan inquired if there have been any examples of a third party conducting a pedestrian safety 
analysis and formally approaching ODOT with recommendations from that analysis. Ms. Henson mentioned 
that she didn't have specific examples but shared that the City of Carlton approached ODOT with a similar 
situation. Carlton wanted to improve their bike area in town, brought in a company, and is currently in talks 
with ODOT, though the outcome is uncertain. City Manager Misley referenced a situation in Sisters where they 
had an IGA and were paying ODOT to do design work on the highway to prep for a project.  
 
City Manager Misley asked Ms. Henson to speak a little on jurisdictional transfer. Ms. Henson provided a brief 
explanation stating that in some instances communities may be able to change ownership of a highway right of 
way from state to local jurisdiction. 

15



 
Mayor Freilinger expressed gratitude to Ms. Henson for her time and acknowledged that ODOT looks at the 
bigger picture when assessing intersections. He emphasized that Silverton is in a similar situation, albeit on a 
smaller scale, with many intersections around town. Prioritization and perspective would be necessary for 
addressing these intersections effectively. 
 
Ms. Henson concluded by mentioning that ODOT has the Hobart and Mt. Angel Hwy intersection on their 
radar for a potential roundabout. 
 
4.2 Mid-Year City Council Goal Update 
City Manager Misley led the discussion on a goal mid-year council goal update stating this was a verbal 
overview and segway into our goals setting meeting in a couple weeks. 
 
Goal 1: Community Engagement – Improve/Enhance/Upgrade the City’s ability to communicate, (two-way 
communication) 
Misley stated that he has been attending the communications team meeting, which has a representative from 
each department. That group and others in the city put together a communications plan document in 2016, and 
it has not been updated since then. One of the conversations that they have been having is, as a vehicle to look 
at some of these items, especially defining the measure of success for community engagement, they should 
update that communications plan. This can be done mostly internally by examining what is already being done 
with that plan and exploring potential opportunities, considering staff capacity, the current organizational chart, 
and workflow. They also want to address the realities with different consultants, such as the website and the 
communications survey, highlighting priorities and areas for improvement. The city is planning to discuss 
multilingual messaging, whether on the website or in forms. Regarding the civic center project, Cleone in 
Community Development spearheaded the combination of various pages on the website, linking them together 
to create a consolidated page that presents the history, design, concept, and funding information in one easily 
accessible location. This page will receive frequent updates throughout the completion of the project. Misley 
expressed that, based on his observations during his time there, there is a decent trajectory to continue working 
on this in the next five (5) months. However, he emphasized that it will be an ongoing goal, even if not explicitly 
listed, in the years to come. 
 
Councilor Sutton inquired about whether the City has an agency contracted for translators. Misley responded 
that they have one for municipal court but was uncertain about other departments. He stated he will look into 
it, mentioning that there may be a non-profit out there that can help. 
 
Goal 2: Strive for community-wide connectivity for multi-model use.  
To the best of Misley's knowledge, there hasn't been much work done on this goal so far. However, he 
mentioned that he has been part of numerous conversations on this subject. He also stated that he has been in 
discussions with both staff and council regarding the creation of a targeted goal, such as a traffic safety audit. 
This would involve a thorough analysis of intersections, whether conducted by ODOT, the County, the City, 
or a combination of all these entities. 
 
Mayor Freilinger added that safety is his number one priority and having an intersection evaluation in our 
community is important.  
 
Councilor Miller added that the Transportation Advisory Committee will be discussing their proposed 
prioritization in their upcoming meeting. Additionally, he mentioned that the transit needs analysis is still in 
progress, according to his understanding. 
 
Goal 3: Enhance Silverton’s Parks and Recreation facilities. 
 
Objective 1: Update the Parks and Recreation master Plan. 
Community Development Director Jason Gottgetreu stated that the staff is handling the master plan update 
internally. The City Council established a master plan advisory committee in April of 2022, which has convened 
eight (8) times to date for the purpose of updating the master plan. An online survey received 465 responses, 
and an open house held in December drew 65 attendees, marking the conclusion of the public participation 

16



phase of the master plan update. Currently, staff is actively working on creating an updated draft of the master 
plan. The plan is scheduled to be presented to the Parks Committee in March. Depending on the need for 
additional adjustments, the adoption process would commence shortly thereafter. The adoption process follows 
a ninety (90)-day timeline, which is required to be noticed to the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development thirty (30) days prior to the first public hearing, typically held as a Planning Commission public 
hearing. Subsequent to the Planning Commission's public hearing, the review process advances to the City 
Council public hearing and adoption stage. During the same time there will also need to be an updated Capital 
Improvement Plan with cost estimates that will need to be contracted out.  
 
Objective 2: Construct Pettit Park Trail, pickleball Courts and Disc Golf Amenities 
Director Gottgetreu stated staff does have the design services for the Pettit Lake Trail and pickleball courts 
currently advertised. The intent is to have that on the February 5, 2024, agenda for award. In addition to that 
staff has heard from the Salem Area Trail Alliance (SATA) who have expressed an interest in helping with 
developing a single-track trail system on site. That would be an 18-inch wide that would complement the city’s 
6 food wide grave trail around the lake.  
 
During the master plan update process, the clear preferred location for the pickleball courts emerged next to 
the senior center parking lot and the skate park. The design currently being drafted aims to offer flexibility in 
terms of the number of courts and amenities, such as lights and coverings. The plan also includes provisions 
for a potential path for community fundraising to support additional those additional amenities. The design idea 
is to provide options for the number of courts that align with the Council's appropriated budget, giving them 
the opportunity to choose the project size that best fits the community's desires and the available budget. This 
design is intended to be completed by the end of June, with construction potentially starting this summer. 
 
The Ike Mooney property was not involved or included in these design services. Currently, the property is in 
the process of being added to the City’s Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Council held its first reading of that 
Ordinance, and the matter is being scheduled for review by the Marion County Board of Commissioners. Once 
this process is complete, the plan is to collaborate with the local disc golf group and engage citizens in a citizen-
led building initiative rather than opting for engineered design services. This approach aims to encourage more 
public use of the site and foster community involvement in the project. 
 
Councilor Miller inquired about the frequency of meetings between the disc golf and mountain biking groups. 
Director Gottgetreu responded that there are members from both groups on the Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan Advisory Committee. Thus, to some extent, they are being involved and included through their 
representation on the advisory committee. 
 
Councilor Sutton recalled a previous offer from a disc golf member to undertake the work themselves if given 
approval by Council. She asked if this was the reason for not including the Ike Mooney property in the design 
services. Director Gottgetreu confirmed that Councilor Sutton's understanding was correct. 
 
Mayor Freilinger asked about the possibility of testifying in support of the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) 
expansion with the County and whether staff would be present at those meetings. Director Gottgetreu confirmed 
that he would be attending the meetings, and the County would have the City Council minutes included in the 
staff report as evidence of support. However, he noted that additional testimony, especially from elected 
officials, shouldn’t be perceived as biased or present a conflict of interest. 
 
Councilor Gaitan inquired about the exclusivity of the SATA volunteers performing work around the Pettit 
Lake trail and whether this hindered the involvement of other vendors in the design process. Director Gottgetreu 
explained that the design Request for Proposals (RFP) specified that the engineer would coordinate with SATA, 
indicating that their involvement was established in the RFP process. 
 
City Manager Misley further elaborated that the Oregon Park and Recreation Department (OPRD) has issued 
a call for grant applications, prompting internal discussions among staff regarding potential funding 
opportunities. While pursuing such grants might delay a project by a few months, it could ultimately result in 
a better outcome. 
 

17



Goal 4: Implement the City’s master plans. 
Public Works Director Travis Sperle explained that initially, the city considered updating the sewer master plan 
internally. However, upon reviewing the updates at the wastewater plant, it became evident that the plant and 
the plan did not align well. Consequently, the decision was made to engage an external service provider to 
conduct the master plan update. This realization also prompted consideration of a larger project involving a 
review of all master plans simultaneously. 
 
Director Sperle emphasized that progress has been made on goal 2, particularly with the 2nd Street project. 
This initiative involves not only street updates with sidewalks but also subsequent plans to address stormwater 
management, gutter improvements, and transitioning from open ditches. 
 
Goal 5: Addressing Silverton’s housing needs. 
Director Gottgetreu explained that the City's approach to achieving its goal has shifted slightly from the original 
plan. Instead of directly partnering with a group to facilitate accessory dwelling unit (ADU) construction 
through low-interest loans, the identified funding source, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funds, didn't align with the potential partner's needs. As an alternative, the City is collaborating with a local 
designer to develop ADU construction plans that will be offered to the public at no charge. We are also looking 
at developing an ADU system development charge (SDC) waiver program. That would be offered to ADU’s 
and would be rented at affordable rates. The AHTF is still working on these programs. 
 
The Affordable Housing Task Force (AHTF) has been actively defining the scope of an affordable housing 
project, which included reviewing potential sites owned by the city, engaging in discussions with affordable 
housing developers to gain insights, and researching similar projects undertaken by other cities. After careful 
consideration, the Westfield site was identified as the preferred location for the project, with approximately 
two (2) acres earmarked for affordable housing. This decision was communicated to the council during the 
June 2023 meeting and further discussed at the September 2023 Joint City Council and Planning Commission 
work session. 
 
Following the review of the qualifications submitted by potential developers in response to the request for 
qualifications (RFQ), all four (4) teams were invited to submit full Request For Proposals (RFP) during the 
January 8, 2024, council meeting. Upon issuance of the RFPs, the teams will have three (3) weeks to review 
the proposals, seek clarification, and prepare their final proposals for submission, with the deadline set for 
March. 
 
The subsequent steps in the process involve the review of the received proposals, followed by the selection of 
the proposal deemed most suitable to meet the City's needs. Once a decision is made, the City will enter a 
memorandum of understanding with the chosen developer to outline the terms and design parameters of the 
project moving forward. 
 
Goal 6: Appropriately utilize URA resources and capabilities.  
Director Gottgetreu provided an update on the goal related to the appropriate use of urban renewal resources, 
specifically concerning the Main St. project. The Urban Renewal Advisory Committee (SURAC) has been 
actively working on defining the scope of this project. To gather community input, an online survey was 
conducted, which garnered 597 responses from December through January. The results of this survey will be 
reviewed during a SURAC meeting scheduled for January 30, 2024. Additionally, a draft Request For Proposals 
(RFP) is currently in development. However, it still requires the incorporation of general design parameters. 
This aspect will be discussed in an upcoming Urban Renewal Agency meeting to ensure alignment and clarity 
regarding the expectations for design services. 
 
City Manager Misley provided an update on the Urban Renewal Agency (URA) activities, mentioning that 
there is a meeting scheduled for February 5, 2024. He also informed the council that he has been in discussions 
with an Urban Renewal Consultant to attend the meeting and provide insights on reassessing the URA's status 
regarding projects and funding. Additionally, there are plans to discuss a URA plan update during the meeting. 
 
 

18



4.3 RV Parking on Church Properties  
Director Gottgetreu read his staff report stating the City had received a request to review Silverton Municipal 
Code language regarding living in Recreation Vehicles (RV) on Church Properties. Currently people can reside 
in RVs for up to fifteen (15) days without a permit any time after that would require a permit for an additional 
fifteen (15) days at no cost and that can be obtained twice in any six (6) month period. If changed the draft code 
language would allow people to reside in RVs on Church properties for up to one hundred and five (105) days 
with similar provisions to allow extended RV stays on the property where an individual is constructing a 
dwelling. The draft language also rescinds the provision that permits RV resident on public street for fifteen 
(15) days with the permission of the adjacent property owner.  
 
After careful consideration and discussion regarding a potential pilot program, along with acknowledging the 
potential burden it could place on staff and the significant efforts of Sheltering Silverton in supporting the 
houseless residents in the community, the council decided to maintain the existing code language as written. 
They directed staff to reassess the situation if it becomes more pressing in the future. 

 
4.4 Discussion of 2024 City Council Calendar 
City Manager Misley presented a staff report discussing potential adjustments to the City Council meeting 
schedule. He mentioned that there were a couple of Mondays where the regular meeting would need to be 
shifted due to holidays. Additionally, he proposed the idea of taking a break during the summer months. 
However, the council expressed unanimous agreement that there was no need to take a break in the summer, 
and thus, the regular meeting schedule would continue as usual. 
 

V. Council Communications 
Councilor Gaitan appreciates the features that Bing provides for researching agendas. 
 
Councilor Traeger attended the 60th-anniversary celebration for the Kiwanis Club and expressed appreciation 
for the significant contributions they make to the community. She also announced the upcoming Junior High 
and High School Unified Basketball games on Tuesday, January 23, 2024. 
 
Councilor Miller expressed gratitude to Public Works for their hard work during the ice storm. Additionally, 
Miller proposed looking into the development of a safety sign in a public area that indicates the number of days 
since a pedestrian accident occurred. He believes that such a sign could enhance public awareness of dangerous 
intersections. 
 
Councilor Hammond stated the Environmental Management and Urban Tree Committee meeting was cancelled 
due to the ice storm.  
 
Councilor Sutton expressed gratitude to Public Works for their hard work during the ice storm. 
 
Councilor Newton shared that she enjoyed the Civic Center tour she attended last week. She believes it provided 
her with a better perspective on how the project is progressing and what aspects still need attention. 
 
Mayor Freilinger reported attending a meeting with City Staff and former Mayor Kyle Palmer regarding ADA 
parking for the Silverton All Abilities Park. The consensus is to utilize the preexisting spots, and they will 
monitor the situation after the park opens to determine if more parking is needed. Mayor Freilinger also 
highlighted the upcoming plan to install a fence and mentioned that the bathrooms will need to be upgraded to 
ADA standards at some point.  
 

VI. Adjournment 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Sutton to Adjourn. Meeting Adjourned at 8:44 pm. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted by: 
/s/Jamie Ward – Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk  

19



City of Silverton
February 2024

Council Roles and Responsibilities

20



Topics Covered

1. Roles of City Council and Staff
• Council
• Mayor
• Council President
• City Manager

2. Group vs. Team

3. 8 Habits of Effective City Councils

21



Defining Roles and Responsibilities 

Question: 
Where can you find where your role is defined? 

- Charter (1985)

- City Council Protocols and Guidelines
(Adopted 2004; Amended 2023)

- Ordinances / Resolutions
22



Form of Government

Question: 
Who here knows what form of government Silverton has?

Answer: 
Charter, Chapter III – Form of Government

 is the Council-Manager Form

23



City Council - Generally

Legislative Body
Example: Ordinances; Budget; Resolutions

Policy Makers/Visionaries
Example: Strategic planning; comprehensive 

plans

Limited Hiring Authority
Example: City manager; city attorney; 

municipal judge; police/fire chief 

Limited Administrative & 
Quasi-Judicial Powers

Examples: Orders; resolutions; license; appeals 
from land use decision or planning 

commission; personnel decisions; contract 
code disqualification appeals

Centralized 
Power

24



Silverton City Council

 Charter, Chapter III, Section 7: Council

 The council shall consist of a mayor and six (6) councilmembers 
elected from the city at large

 Charter, Chapter III, Section 8: Council Members

 The term of office of each councilmember in office when this Charter 
is adopted shall continue for the term for which each was elected. At 
each subsequent biennial general election, three (3) councilmembers 
shall be elected, each for a term of four (4) years

 Charter, Chapter IV, Section 14: Quorum

 A majority of the incumbent members of the council shall constitute a 
quorum for its business, but a smaller number may meet and compel 
the attendance of absent members in a manner provided by ordinance

25



Council Authorities
 Legislative:

Adopt Ordinances

Administrative
Appoint/Remove/Supervise City Officers
Adopt Resolutions

Quasi-Judicial
Council applies specific rule/policy, to a specific situation,

council makes final decision, typically making specific
findings.

Silverton City Council

26



 Charter, Chapter III, Section 7 – Council

 Council consists of (1) mayor and (6) councilmembers

 Charter, Chapter III, Section 8 – Councilmembers

 Councilmember term is four years duration

 Charter, Chapter IV, Section 13 – Meetings

 Minimum one meeting per month

 Council shall adopt council rules

 Ordinance 2.04 – City Council Meeting: City council meetings held first Monday of
each month, at a time set by council

 Charter, Chapter IV, Section 14 – Quorum

 Majority of council members

Silverton City Council

27



 Charter, Chapter V, Section 26 – Interference in
Administration and Elections
 (1) Member of council shall not directly/indirectly/by suggestion

attempt to influence the manager in making an
appointment/removal of city staff, purchasing supplies, or quid pro
quo for a management position.

 (2) Member of council forfeits the office if they violate section (1)

 Charter, Chapter VI, Section 30 – Oath of Office
Each officer shall take an oath to affirm support of the

constitutions, the laws of the U.S., and the state of Oregon, and to
faithfully perform office duties.

Silverton City Council

28



Silverton City 
Council

 City Council Protocols - Page 6:
 Council members will adhere to

the adopted set of principles
when dealing with each other
and general public.

 Council desires to conduct
meetings that are courteous,
effective, efficient.

 Council desires to foster
environment that is fair, open,
and responsive to community
needs.

29



Silverton City 
Council

- City Council Protocols set
forth tenants and philosophy
for the council to uphold

COUNCIL MEETING EXPECTATIONS

 Try to make the citizens comfortable and part of the process
at the meetings.
 Make visitors comfortable by being courteous, respecting
their opinions, and by
showing trust and respect for visitors.
 Do my best to communicate in clear, concise and audible
language and written
communications.
 Strive to maintain a tone of voice that is friendly and
sincere.
 Honor and act on all requests for action and/or information
in a timely and courteous
manner.
 Discuss issues, but not personalities with non-Council
members. After an issue has been voted on, a council member
will communicate in a manner that does not undermine the
integrity or motives of the Council.

- City Council Protocols: Page 6
30



Silverton City 
Council

19. Non-Observance of Protocols and Guidelines – The adopted protocols and guidelines are
adopted to expedite and facilitate the transaction of the business of the Council in an orderly fashion
and will be deemed to be procedural only. Failure to strictly observe any such protocol or guideline
will not affect the jurisdiction of, or invalidate any action taken by the Council. The Council will make
every effort to comply with all protocols and guidelines within this document. All questions pertaining
to the document regarding its’ protocols and guidelines must be resolved by a majority vote of the City
Council.

21. Use of Handheld Electronic Devices During Council Meetings – The use of handheld electronic
devices shall not interfere with the meeting.

- City Council Protocols, Page 16

31



Silverton City 
Council

City Council Protocols: 
Pages 24-26; Appendix 

A: Policy Decision 
Making Process 

32



Mayor - Generally

Public Face of Community
• Represent city at events
• Council spokesperson

Presiding Officer
• Keeps order
• Sets agendas
• Appoints committee members
• Signs documents and ordinances

Chief Facilitator
• Facilitates discussions between

councilors
• Facilitates dialogue between council

and manager
33



Silverton Mayor Duties
 Charter, Chapter III, Section 9 – Mayor

 Two-year term

 Charter, Chapter IV, Section 17 – Mayor at Council Meeting
 Shall preside over council deliberations

 Shall have vote on all questions before council

 Shall preserve order, enforce council rules

 Shall determine order of business

 Charter, Chapter V, Section 20 – Mayor
 Shall appoint council committees

 Shall sign all records of proceeding, countersign all orders of city treasurer

 Shall have NO veto power

 Shall sign all ordinances passed by council within three days of passage.

34



Silverton Mayor Duties
 Council Protocols, Chapter I, Section 8

 Establishes protocol if mayor is absent
 Council Protocols, Chapter III

Mayor to Facilitate Council Meetings: prevent misuse of motions,
abuse privilege or obstruction of business

Mayor shall act in good faith
 Assist council to focus on agenda, discussions, and deliberations
Manage councilmembers discussion

 Council Protocols, Chapter III, Section 9
 (a)-(k) – prescribes format for agenda item discussion protocols

 Council Protocols, Chapter VII, Section 1 and 2
Ceremonial Representative: proclamations, certificates of

recognition
35



Silverton Mayor Duties

 Council Protocols, Chapter X, Section 4
Adherence to Administrative Procedure & Process Protocols

Mayor has duty to discuss (on behalf of council) any 
perceived/inappropriate administrative action with a 
council member

Mayor will discuss with said council member the action at 
issue and suggest a more appropriate process or 
procedure to follow

Mayor will report the concern to the full council

36



 Acts as the Mayor when the Mayor is absent

 In some cities, the Council President is elected to 
represent and be the head of the Councilors

 Depending on charter or council rules, some Council 
Presidents retain authority to vote when acting as Mayor

Council President - Generally

37



 Charter, Chapter IV, Chapter 18 – Council President
 First meeting of each odd-numbered year, council shall elect 

council president
 Shall cast single vote on any single issue
Whenever mayor is unable to perform functions of office, the 

president shall act as mayor

 Council Protocols, Chapter I, Section 8 –
Council president shall preside in absence of mayor

 Council Protocols, Chapter VII, Section 1 and 2 –
Council President assumes responsibilities of mayor in their 

absence

Silverton Council President Duties

38



City Manager-
Generally

Chief Executive Officer of the City

• Manages the city and its personnel
• Recruits, hires, supervises and terminates city 

employees
• Prepares the budget (or oversees its 

preparation) for the council’s consideration
• Responsible for ensuring the council’s vision 

and strategic plans are brought to fruition

Chief Advisor to the City Council
• Provides the council with objective 

information about local operations
• Provides reasoned analysis and 

assessments of the benefits and 
consequences of city council actions

• Makes policy recommendations for the 
council to consider

39



 Charter, Chapter III, Section 10 – Appointive Officers
Council shall appoint City Manager / Recorder by majority 

vote
Shall affix compensation and approve for city employees

 Charter, Chapter V, Section 22 – City Manager
 Indefinite term 

 Charter, Chapter VI, Section 31 – Nominations
City Recorder serves as elections officer

Silverton City Manager Duties

40



Charter, Chapter V, Section 24 – Powers and Duties of 
City Manager
City CEO
 Appoints all heads of departments
 Supervises city employees
 Ensures contracts, franchises, leases, permits are fully observed
 Attends all council meetings
 Advise council of city needs
 Prepare and furnish reports as council requests
Oversees city supply purchasing; contracts 
City recorder 
 The list goes on…..

Silverton City Manager Duties

41



Council Protocols
 Chapter II and Chapter VII– Manager can add consent 

agenda items as well as regular agenda

 Chapter IV, Section 2 – Mayor may assign city manager follow 
up duties during public comment and direct for additional 
information to be brought to council at a later meeting

 Chapter VI, Section 3 – Mayor can direct City Manger to 
respond directly to public commentor or revisit at later meeting 
if correction required

Silverton City Manager Duties

42



Council - City Staff PARTNERSHIP

43



GROUP
 

vs.

TEAM

44



GROUP VS. TEAM

GROUP TEAM

 Consists of people who are 
independent of each other 
and each member has a 
different set of tasks.

 Because members work 
individually, their work 
product is also valued 
independently.

 Consists of people and tasks 
that are interdependent 
and rely on each other.

 People are dependent on 
one another, share 
responsibilities and are 
judged as a collective.

 Buy into the theory of 
governance. 

45



BUILDING A TEAM

Question: 
What do you think it takes to 

build a productive team?

Question: 
What things can your council do 

to foster a better team?

Communication 

Respect 

Goals 

Knowledge 

46



TEAM PRINCIPLES 

1. Shared Understanding

2. Shared Ownership

3. Everyone Contributes

4. Room for Everyone to Express Ideas & Opinions

5. No Person Feels Threatened by Conflict

6. Atmosphere of Trust & Encouragement

7. Participative Decision-Making
47



9 Habits of Highly Effective Councils

Seek 
objective 

assessments 

Think and 
act 

strategically 

Adopt, apply, 
adhere to 

procedure rules
Allocate time 
appropriately 

Evaluate policy 
implementation

Define roles 
and 

responsibilities

Understand 
and 

demonstrate 
teamwork

Effective Councils

Continue 
education 

Master Group 
Decision 
Making

48



Think and Act 
Strategically

Council Protocols Chapter X, Page 31 

• The Council will review, and revise 
and City Council Protocols and 
Guidelines as needed or every two 
years

49



Think and Act Strategically

• February 6, 2024 – work session to review current 
goals.

• How does your council monitor progress on any given 
goal?
• Monthly, quarterly, mid-year check-ins?

• Who was present during the last goal setting session?

50



Think and Act Strategically

• Adopted July 1979

• Last revised August 2002

• Periodic Review required by 2007 

legislation for cities over 10,000.
• The overall purpose of Periodic Review is to 

ensure that local comprehensive plans are:
• Updated to respond to changes in local, 

regional and state conditions;

• Coordinated with other comprehensive 
plans and investments; and

• In compliance with the statewide 
planning goals, statutes and rules.

51



Understand and Demonstrate Teamwork

 What does demonstrating teamwork look like?

Goals; understood roles; climate of trust and 
mutual respect; disciplined leadership; 
commitment to team’s success. 

Question: 
Does your council currently demonstrate teamwork? 

What does that look like? 

Question: 
What would you like to see implemented in the future 

to develop teamwork?

https://sidecarglobal.com/organizational-culture/place-process-dei-and-wellness-workplace-culture-in-2023/

52



Define Roles and Responsibilities 

Figure Credit to West University Place

• Familiarity with your role 

• Know the basic functions of 
government 

• Continue to learn

• Review governing documents 
regularly no matter how long 
you’ve been an elected 
official

53



Consistently Evaluate Policy Implementation 

• Who provides updates of your overall 
progress? 

• What frequency?

• Is there a practice of feedback to each other 
and to city staff related to policy?

• What frequency?

54



Allocate Time Appropriately

Goal Setting
(Annually)

Exploration & 
Analysis
(Work Session)

Disposition & 
Legislation
(Public Meetings)

Community 
Relations
(Town hall; city 

newsletters)

55



Adopt, Apply, Adhere to Procedural Rules

• When was the last time you reviewed 
your adopted your city council 
protocols and guidelines?

• Presiding officers: mayor and council 
president – are you comfortable in 
your role of running meetings?

• If not, what can you do to feel 
more comfortable?

• Councilors: are you familiar with your 
role to help meetings run efficiently?

• If not, what can you do to 
support your council?

56



Seek Objective Assessments 

https://www.culturemonkey.io/employee-engagement/dei-training/ 57



Continue Education

Identify Your Role

What are the Skills 
Needed?

Develop Skills  

Learn as a Group

LOC Trainings and Conferences

• Elected Essentials
• Municipal Fundamentals
• On-Demand Trainings
• Small Cities Meetings
• Lobbying 101 Videos
• City Day (odd years)
• Conferences

• Spring Conference (Klamath 
Falls)

• Fall Conference (Bend)
• Scholarships

• Bulletin
• Local Focus
• Reference Library
• Municipal Handbook
• CityCounty Insurance Services (CIS)

58



Master Group Decision Making

Figure credit goes to Carl H. Neu, Jr

• Create clearly 
defined processes 
for making 
decisions

• Each member of 
the group 
identifies strength 
and weakness and 
improves where 
they can

• Group supports 
the collective 
goals

59



QUESTIONS?

60



League of Oregon Cities

Call: (503) 588-6550

Email:
Robin Klein

Assistant General Counsel
rklein@orcities.org

61

mailto:rklein@orcities.org


Recommendation:    
Authorize the City Manager to amend the contract with M.L. Houck for $99,816 for the Second 
Street Improvement Project.  
 
Background:  
 The City approved the Second Street Improvement Project budget in the 2022-2023 fiscal year 
(FY) to complete reconstruction of Second Street with pedestrian improvements and associated 
utility improvements from Lincoln Street south to where the sidewalk ends south of Whittier. The 
project also includes sidewalk improvements on the west side of Mill Street and realignment of 
the Mill and Whittier Street Intersection. The construction contract was awarded to M.L. Houck 
Construction Co on June 5, 2023, meeting for a not to exceed amount of $2,112,680.75. The City 
on the January 8, 2024, meeting approved an amendment to the M.L. Houck contract in the amount 
of $233,000. 
 
Due to an Engineering cost estimate error and unforeseen circumstances that caused the road base 
to fail and to require additional excavation and new material so the road base will meet compaction 
requirements.  The unforeseen issues will have the following impact. 
 

M.L. Houck original construction contract:   $1,962,680.75 
Contract changes to date from contingency        102,830.89  
Remaining contingency            47,169.11 
 Subtotal      $2,112,680.75 
City Council approved Amendment 01/08/2024       233,000.00 
Requested change to complete           99.816.00 
 ML Houck amended not to exceed amount  $2,445,496.75 
 
Firwood Design not to exceed           50,000.00 
 Total Second Street Project    $2,495,496.75 
 

These changes do not require a transfer of funds as the appropriation authority within the fund is 
sufficient to cover the unforeseen expenditure. The total appropriation authorized for the Second 
Street Improvement Project by the City Council in the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget was 
$2,496,863 and the approved contracts and amendments will equal $2,495,496.75 leaving an 
unobligated amount of $1,366.25. 
 

 

Agenda Item No.: Topic: 
5.2 Authorize The City Manager 

To Amend the Contract with 
M.L. Houck for $99,816 for 
the Second Street 
Improvement Project.  

Agenda Type: 
Discussion/Action 

Meeting Date:  
February 5, 2024 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 
Travis Sperle Kathleen Zaragoza  Cory Misley  

62



The Unforeseen Expenditures are due to the road base failing and requiring additional excavation 
and material to be removed. This will allow new base rock to be installed to meet compaction 
requirements. After determination that the road subgrade base was not sufficient for completion in 
current state, a cost to cover securing the road base was established. The amount of new material 
to be contingent upon amount of current material that can be salvaged. Overall costs associated 
with the increase to account for engineering services as well as geotechnical services as needed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachments:  

1. Project Cost 
2. Engineer Estimated Cost  

 
 

Budget Impact Fiscal Year Funding Source 

$99,816 2023-24 Second Street Improvement 
Project Fund  

63



M. L. HOUCK  CONSTRUCTION  CO.
4444  22ND  AVENUE  N.E.  SALEM, OR 97301

PHONE (503)  463-7l77  FAX (503)  463-4979
An Equal  Opportunity  Employer

C C B # 8 5 6 9 7

City  of Silverton
306 S. Water  Street
Silverton  OR 97381

Attn:  Travis  Sperle

Date: 01/27/24

RE: Change  Order  Requested  Documents  (Road  Stabilization)

Attached  are the  following:

*  Contract  Time  extension  request.

*  An outline  of how I understand  the City  wants  the change  order  work
completed.  Please indicate  if there  are any discrepancies,

*  Cost estimates  comparing  already  excavated  areas  to undisturbed  areas

listing cost of both and ML Houck contributions/cost  sharing,

*  Cost Breakdowns  for  the  3-0"  and Additional  Cost.

The change  order  totals  are as follows:

Feel free  to reach  out  with  any questions.

Steve  Weeks

Phone:  (503)  463-7177
Cell:  (971)  701-1654

Email: steve@houckco.com

Attachment 1

64



M. L. HOUCK  CONSTRUCTION  CO.
4444  22ND  AVENUE N.E.  SALEM, OR 97301
PHONE (503)  463-7177  FAX (503)  463-4979

An Equal  Opportunity  Employer

CCB  # 85697

City of Silverton
306 S. Water  Street
Silverton  OR 97381

Attn:  Travis  Sperle

Date: 01/27/24

RE: 2nd Street  Improvements  Contract  Time

M. L. Houck  Construction  is requesting  a contract  extension  to April 5'h, 2024,  due
to the following:

* Addition  of approximately  4200 tons of 3"-0 and 2400 yard of excavation,
* Recent  abnormal  rainfall  levels creating  unsustainable  road construction
conditions,

* Days lost in relation to design/administration  or improved road section.

The requested  extension  date is given  the weather  allows  for starting  road

excavation 1/29/24  with limited weather  interruption  following.

Feel free.to  reach out with  any questions.

Steve

Phone:  (503)  463-7177
Cell:  (971)  701-1654

Email: steve@houckco.com

65



M. L. HOUCK  CONSTRUCTION  CO.
4444  22ND  AVENUE  I%SJ.(E. SALEM,  OR 97301

PHONE  (503)  463-7l77  FAX (503)  463-4979
An EC7UO1 0pportunity  Employer

CCB  # 85697

RE: 2nd St Improvements  -  Subgrade  Stabilization i [21  /'2,'7'
At the  request  of the City,  we have  provided  a price  for  subgrade

stabilization of $77,92 per ton of 3-0" crushed rock, There is an estimated 3650
tons of 3-0" needed, putting the total estimate at $284,395.64. This price includes
excavation  and placement  required  for  the  subgrade  stabilization material,

The area to receive  subgrade  stabilization  has been outlined  by Firwood  and

approved  by the City,  The  City  direction  is to use 18"  of 3-0"  for  stabilization  and

6" of 3/4-0"  for  base rock.  If  there  are any changes  to be made  to this  in the  field

they  will need  to come  from  the City. Upon the  start  of this  work  the  City

requested  that  NV5 personnel  be onsite  to assess  the condition  of the  subgrade.

We will provide  notice  of  the  start  date  for  scheduling.

Areas  that  already  have  base rock  installed  will attempt  to be salvaged.  It is

difficult  to tell  the quantity  of material  able  to be reused  but  anything  that  can be

reused  that isn't contaminated with mud/subgrade will be rehandled and
reinstalled.  Any  base rock  that  is contaminated  with  mud will be hauled  to a dump
site.  Additional  base rock  needed  is to be paid under  the original  bid item for  base

rock.

While  placing  the  stabilization  material  the subgrade  will be inspected  by

NV5 personnel  and not  proof  rolled.  As explained  by NV5 in the field,  running  a

loaded  truck  over  the  current  subgrade  material  will  likely  compromise  the

subgrade,  3-0"  and 3A-0"  will  be rolled  for  compaction  with  minimal  vibration.  We

will minimize  the amount  of construction  traffic  on the  new road sections.

The weather  will play  a big role in scheduling  for  this  work,  We have  and are
forecasted  to continue  to get  significant  rain days.  While  raining  and likely  the  day

after  significant  rainfall  this  work  is not  sustainable.  Flexibility  in this  aspect  is
necessary  in completing  the  work  to standard,

Please  contact  me with  any  questions.

Steve  Weeks

Phone:  (503)  463-7177

Cell:  (971)  701-1654

Email: steve@houckco.com

66



2nd  St. Estimated  Project  Cost  Increase  (Already  Excavated  Area)

Revised  1/26  10:OOAM-Steve

CY Quantity  Units  Unitcost  ProjectCost  MLHCost Combine

TotalsOver-Ex

3" Minus  Rock  1257  2,264.00  tons  $ 77.92  $ 176,410.88

3/4"  Minus  Rock  419  754.00  tons  $ 50.00  $ 37,700.00

TotalOver-Excosts  $214J10.88  $214,110.88

Credit  for  deleting  the  quantity  of the  8" of

3/4"Minus  in the  original  bid/budget  amount  for

areas  to be over-excavated  (includes

intersections)  - tons $ 50.00  $

Net Project Cost Increase Subtotak $ 214,110.88  $ 214,110.88

Estimated  amount  of 3/4"  Minus  rock  already

placed  and  to be removed  in areas  to be over-

eXCaVated(e:therinVOiCedOrtObeinVOiCed)  1004tons  $ so.oo -

Credit  for  Estimated  % to be salvaged  and re-

usedbycontractoratnocosttoCity  60%  -602.4t0nS  $ 50.00  $ - $(30,120.00)

Net  Project  costlncrease  for  3/4"  already

placed  (represents  amount  to be discarded

alreadypaidfor)  $(30,120.00)

Already Exd Total Cost $ 214,110.88  $ (30,120.00) $ 183,990.88

67



2nd  St. Estimated  Project  Cost  Increase  (Undisturbed  Area)

Quantity  Units  Unit cost  Cost  Totals

Over-Ex

3" Minus Rock 1,934.00  tons  $ 77.92  $ 150,697.28

3/4" Minus Rock 612.00 tons  $ 50.00  $ 30,600.00

TotakOver-Excosts  $181,297.28

Credit  for deleting  the quantity  of the 8" of

3/4"Minus  in the original  bid/budget  amount  for

areas to be over-excavated  (includes

intersections)  (805.86)tons  $ 50.00  $ (40,293.00)

UndisturbedTotakCost  $141,004.28

Additional  Cost

Project  Cost  MLH Cost

Change order administration/supervision  $ 1,684.00  $ (1,684.00)

Equipment  on Rent  $ 6,000.00  $ (6,000.00)

Contractor  Estimated  Increased  costs for

traffic  control  $ 7,257.00  $ (5,660.00)

Contactor  Estimated  Increased  costs for Road

Maintenance,  plate rental  etc.  $ 10,929.00  $ (4,721.00)

Subtotak  $ 25,870.00  $ (18,065.00)  $ 7,805.00

AlreadyExdCostTotal  $214,110.88

UndisturbedCostTotal  $141,004.28

AdditionakCostsTotak  $25,870.00

MLHSharedCost  $(48,185.00)

TotakProjectlncrease  $332,800.16

68



Change  Order  Tracking:

Owner: City  of  Silverton

Project: 2nd  Street  Improvements

Labor  and  Equipment  Involved

M.L.  Houck  Construction  Company

4444  22nd  Ave  N.E.

Salem  OR.  97301

Phone:  503-463-7177

Date:

By:

1/27/2024
Steve  Weeks

Description

Covers  All  Supervision,  Labor,  Equipment,  Required  to  excavate  approx.  2332  CY of

subgrade  and  install  approx.  4198  tons  of  3-0"  stabalization  material.  Also  covers

any unsalvagabe  3/4-0" removal/disposal.

Materials  required

Super

Laborers

Operator

Equipment

Truck

Qty Hours

234.5

290

450.5

228

sgi

Total  Labor  and  Equipment

With.l557  o/o Markup

Rate

79.24

64.01

76.90

225.00

130.00

Total

18,581.78

18,562.90

34,643.45

51,300.00

76,830.00

S 199,918.13

S 231,045.38

1. 5

2

2. 5

3. 5

1

Description

Rock

Dump  Fees

Road  Fabric

GPS Rent

Survey

Qty

4198

291

1

1

1

Unit

TN

EA

LS

LS

LS

Rate

!> 12.50

S 80.00

S 2,741.86

S 2,990.00

5 1,634.00

Total  Material

With.l557  o/o Markup

Total

S 52,475.00

S 23,280.00

S 2,741.86

5 2,990.00

S 1,634.00

S 83,120.86

S 96,062.78

Additional  excavation Grand  Total ">  327,108.16

Additional  rock  backfill

69



Change  Order  Tracking:

Owner:

Project:

City  of  Silverton

2nd  Street  Improvements

Labor  and  Equipment  Involved

M.L.  Houck  Construction  Company

4444  22nd  Ave  N.E.

Salem  OR.  97301

Phone:  503-463-7177

Date:

By:

1/27/2024

Steve  Weeks

Description

Break down  CCO Administration  / Supervision.  Covers all onsite  meetings  and office

work  to  date.

Materials  required

Super

Laborers

Operator

Equipment

Truck

Qty Hours

1  17.5

2 0

20

17

10

Total  Labor  and  Equipment

With.l557  o/o  Markup

Rate

79.24

62.60

76.90

10.00

120.00  S

Total

1,386.70

70.00

S 1,456.70

S 1,683.51

Description

Rock

Dump  fees

Parts

Plates

Qty  Unit

5 tons

1  EA

1  LS

2 EA

Rate Tota

TotalMaterial  S

With.l557  o/o  Markup  S

Additional  excavation Grand  Total 5 1,683.51

Additional  rock  backfill

70



Change  Order  Tracking:

Owner: City  of  Silverton

Project: 2nd  Street  Improvements

Labor  and  Equipment  Involved

M.L.  Houck  Construction  Company

4444  22nd  Ave  N.E.

Salem  OR.  97301

Phone:  503-463-7177

Date:

By:

1/27  /2024
Steve  Weeks

Description

Break  down  Rental  on Equipment.  Covers  outside  rent  on dozer  and  GPS equipment

for  2 months.

Materials  required

Super

Laborers

Operator

Equipment

Truck

Qty Hours

10

20

20

10

10

Total  Labor  and  Equipment

Rate Tota

79.24

62.60

76.90

10.00

120.00  S

Description

Rock

Dump  fees

Parts

Plates

Rental  Rate

Qty  Unit  Rate  Total

5 tons S - S

I  EA  S - S

1  LS S - S

2 EA  S - S

2 Month  " 3,000.00 S 6,000.00

Total  Material S 6,000.00

Additional  excavation Grand  Total S 6,000.00

Additional  rock  backfill

71



Change  Order  Tracking:

Owner: City  of  Silverton

Project: 2nd  Street  Improvements

Labor  and  Equipment  Involved

M.L.  Houck  Construction  Company

4444  22nd  Ave  N.E.

Salem  OR.  97301

Phone:  503-463-7177

Date:

By:

1/27  /2024
Steve  Weeks

Description

Break  down  of  Traffic  control.  Covers  additional  cost  of  maintaining  and  provided

traffic  control  for  two  months  starting  12/11/23.

Materials  required

Super

Laborers

Operator

Equipment

Truck

Qty Hours

17

2 15

20

1  22

10

Total  Labor  and  Equipment

With.l557  o/o Markup

Rate Tota

79.24

62.60

76.90

35.00

S 554.68

S 770.00

120.00  S

S 3,202.68

S 3,701.34

Description

Rock

Dump  fees

Parts

Plates

Reader  board

Materials

Qty

5

1

1

2

Unit

tons

EA

LS

EA

Month

LS

Rate  Total

1.388.00

S 300.00 S

2,776.00

3 00.00

Total  Material S 3,076.00

With.l557  o/o Markup  S 3,554.93

Additional  excavation Grand  Total S 7,256.27

Additional  rock  backfill

72



Change  Order  Tracking:

Owner:  City  of  Silverton

Project:  2ndStreetlmprovements

M.L.  Houck  Construction  Company

4444  22nd  Ave  N.E.

Salem  OR.  97301

Phone:  503-463-7177

Date:

By:

1/27/2024

Steve  Weeks

Description

Break  down  of  Road  Maintenance.  Covers  costs  on labor  and  equipment  to  date  and

plate rental for two months  starting  12/11/23.

Labor  and  Equipment  Involved Materials  required

Super

Laborers

Operator

Equipment

Truck

Qty

1

2

2

1

1

Hours

9.5

10

10

8

o

Total  Labor  and  Equipment

With.l557  o/o  Markup

Rate

79.24

62.60

76.90

120.00

120.00

Total

752.78

1,252.00

1,538.00

960.00

S 4,502.78

S 5,203.86

Description

Rock

Dump  fees

PartS

Plates

Qty

5

1

1

2

Unit

tons

EA

LS

Month

Rate Total

S 2,480.00  S 4,960.00

Total  Material

With.l557  o/o  Markup

S 4,960.00

S 5,732.27

Additional  excavation Grand  Total S 10,936.13

Additional  rock  backfill

73



Firwood Design Group 1/26/2024

Quantity Units Unit cost Cost Totals
Over-Excavation and Replacement
3" Minus Rock 4,198.00                    tons 77.92$  327,108.16$         
3/4" Minus Rock 1,366.00                    tons 50.00$  68,300.00$            

Total Over-Ex costs 395,408$                

Credit for deleting the quantity of the 8" of 
3/4"Minus in the original bid/budget amount for 
areas to be over-excavated (includes 
intersections) (1,821.00)                  tons 50.00$  (91,050.00)$          

Net Project Cost Increase Subtotal 304,358$                

Estimated amount of 3/4" Minus rock already 
placed and to be removed in areas to be over-
excavated (either invoiced or to be invoiced) 1022 tons 50.00$  51,100.00$            

Credit for Estimated % to be salvaged and re-used 
by contractor (MLH contribution to remove, 
stockpile, and replace at no cost to City) 60% -613.2 tons 50.00$  (30,660.00)$          

Net Project cost Increase for 3/4" already placed 
(represents amount to be discarded already paid 
for) 20,440.00$            

Net Project Cost Increase Subtotal 324,798$                

Other Additional Costs MLH Cost  MLH Contribution 
Change order administration/supervision 1,684.00$                   (1,684.00)$             
Equipment on Rent 6,000.00$                   (6,000.00)$             
Contractor Estimated Increased costs for traffic 
control 7,257.00$                   (5,660.00)$             
Contactor Estimated Increased costs for Road 
Maintenance, plate rental, etc. 10,929.00$                 (4,721.00)$             

Subtotal 25,870.00$                 (18,065.00)$          7,805$  

Estimated Net Project Cost Increase (rounded $X,0000) 333,000$                

Estimate Contingencies
Low Estimate (rounded  $X,000) -10% 300,000$                
High Estimate 25% 416,000$                

Summary:
Total Additional Costs 381,328$                
Contractor (MLH) Contributions
     Re-Use of 3/4" Rock (30,660.00)$             
     Reduction in Additional Costs (18,065.00)$             
Total  Contractor Contributions (48,725)$                 

Estimated Project Increase 332,603$                

2nd St.  Estimated Project Cost Increase for Failing Subbase

Attachment 2

74



Intersections Quantity Calculations
Over-Ex Areas:
Jeff 1702 SF
Wash 1596 SF
Chester 1012 SF
Whittier 1173 SF

3" 3/4"
5483 SF 5483 SF

18 depth ( 6 depth (inches)
305 CY 102 CY
1.8 t/CY 1.8 tons/CY

548.30                        tons 182.77                          tons
548.00                        rounde 183.00                          tons

77.92 $/ton 50 $/ton Total
42,700$                     9,150$                          51,850$                   

Intersections-Original 8-inch section 3/4"
5483 SF

8 depth (inches)
135 CY
1.8 tons/CY

243.69                          tons
244.00                          tons

50 $/ton
 12,200$                       

75



SILVERTON CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS 
 
 

City of Silverton | 306 S. Water St., Silverton, OR 

Recommendation: 

Ratify the City Manager amendments to the construction contract with Corp Inc. from 

$15,305,288.24 to $15,361,941.84, an increase of $56,658.60. 

 

Background:  

As noted during the August 7, 2023, City Council meeting, the City Council adopted modified 

purchasing policies for the Civic Center project to allow contract modifications of up to $60,000 

to be staff approved.  The intent moving forward is to have the contract amendments ratified by 

Council each month rather than the previous practice of informing the Council through the 

Community Development Department Monthly Report.   

 

The Civic Center is under construction.  The steel frame is erected roof installed and the second 

floor has been poured.  The exterior walls are framed, and exterior sheathing is complete.  The 

streel re-work has been completed on the second floor.  The interior framing is installed on the 

first floor and second floor.  Mechanical, Electric, and Plumbing is generally finished on the first 

floor and second floor.  Insulation and drywall are installed on the first floor and second floor.  The 

lobby floor polish finish is complete.  Site concrete work is mostly complete.  Roadwork on N 

Water St is complete for the season.  Road paving on A Street and the south parking lot is complete.  

Sidewalks around the site are installed.  Site walls are being installed.  The windows are installed.  

Painting of the interior is mostly complete.  Tile work in the bathrooms is complete.  Landscape 

irrigation is completed and plants are being installed.  The City of Silverton Public Works crew 

graded and seeded the southern portion of the site.  Casework is being installed.  Flooring is being 

installed.  Doors are being installed.  Interior wood accent walls are being installed.  Wall sound 

baffles are installed.  High density storage units are being installed.  Plumbing fixtures are being 

installed.  The elevator is installed.  Bike racks, trash cans, and benches are installed on site.  The 

generator and electrical pads have been poured and site work in that area is underway 

 

The construction contract amount was initially $14,750,000.  There have been several Change 

Order Requests as part of the project that to date have added an additional $611,946.84 to the 

contract for a new contract total of $15,361,941.84, a 4.14% increase.  This increase is $56,658.60 

from the December Council report.  As of the December payment requests there is a $1,313,277.19 

remaining balance to finish. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item No.: Topic: 

6.1 Civic Center Change Order 

Ratification 
Agenda Type: 

Consent 

Meeting Date: 

February 5, 2024 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 

Jason Gottgetreu Kathleen Zaragoza Cory Misley 

76



SILVERTON CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS 
 
 

City of Silverton | 306 S. Water St., Silverton, OR 

 

Budget Impact Fiscal Year Funding Source 

$56,658.60 2023-2024  Civic Center Project Fund 

77



SILVERTON CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS 

 
 

City of Silverton | 306 S. Water St., Silverton, OR 

Recommendation: 
Staff makes no recommendation for approval or denial of the application to the Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission (OLCC).  The final decision rests with OLCC. 
 
Background:  
An application has been made for a “Full-On Premises Commercial” liquor license for owner 
Pietro Sangiorgi for the business name of “The Curbside Italian Kitchen” which is located at 115 
N. Water St. Silverton, OR 97381.   
 
The police department has reviewed the application and has no concerns or issues with the 
applicant, or OLCC licensing requested under the Oregon Administrative Rules governing 
licensing for owner and a business ‘Full-On Premises Commercial’ sales. The OLCC application 
and business information are attached to this staff report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachments:  

1. OLCC Liquor License Application 

 

Agenda Item No.: Topic: 
6.2 OLCC Liquor License for 

“The Curbside Italian 
Kitchen”,115 N. Water St., 
Silverton.  

Agenda Type: 
Consent 

Meeting Date:  
February 5, 2024 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 
            Jim Anglemier Cory Misley Cory Misley 

Budget Impact Fiscal Year Funding Source 
N/A 2023-2024 N/A 

















Community Development Department 
Monthly Report – February 2024 

1 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT 

For The February 5, 2024, City Council Meeting 
 

Planning Division 
 

• The Civic Center is under construction.  The steel frame is erected roof 
installed and the second floor has been poured.  The exterior walls are 
framed, and exterior sheathing is complete.  The streel re-work has been 
completed on the second floor.  The interior framing is installed on the first 
floor and second floor.  Mechanical, Electric, and Plumbing is generally 
finished on the first floor and second floor.  Insulation and drywall are installed 
on the first floor and second floor.  The lobby floor polish finish is complete.  
Site concrete work is mostly complete.  Roadwork on N Water St is complete 
for the season.  Road paving on A Street and the south parking lot is 
complete.  Sidewalks around the site are installed.  Site walls are being 
installed.  The windows are installed.  Painting of the interior is mostly 
complete.  Tile work in the bathrooms is complete.  Landscape irrigation is 
completed and plants are being installed.  The City of Silverton Public Works 
crew graded and seeded the southern portion of the site.  Casework is being 
installed.  Flooring is being installed.  Doors are being installed.  Interior wood 
accent walls are being installed.  Wall sound baffles are installed.  High 
density storage units are being installed.  Plumbing fixtures are being 
installed.  The elevator is installed.  Bike racks, trash cans, and benches are 
installed on site.  The generator and electrical pads have been poured and 
site work in that area is underway.  
 
The construction contract amount was initially $14,750,000.  There have been 
several Change Order Requests as part of the project that to date have 
added an additional $611,946.84 to the contract for a new contract total of 
$15,361,941.84, a 4.14% increase.  This increase is $56,658.60 from the 
December Council report.  As of the December payment requests there is a 
$1,313,277.19 remaining balance to finish. 
 

• The Affordable Housing Task Force will meet on February 20th to review an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit program to facilitate the construction of ADU’s. 

 

• The Silverton Urban Renewal Advisory Committee met on January 20th to 
review the survey for public input on a Main Street Project that received 597 
responses.  

 
o The Planning Commission met on January 9th and denied the appeal 

of a Minor Partition approval and upheld the staff approval to divide 
216 Cherry Street, a 0.45 acre parcel, into three parcels with parcel 1 
containing 5,092 square feet, parcel 2 containing 6,646 square feet, 
and parcel 3 containing 7,248 square feet.  The parcels will be 
accessed via a 20’ shared access and utility easement off Cherry 
Street..  

 

78



Community Development Department 
Monthly Report – February 2024 

2 

• The Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update Project Advisory Committee 
met on January 2nd to review the results from the Open House on December 
5th that had 65 people in attendance. 
 

• A Design Review application to construct a 3,500 square foot addition to an 
existing 7,000 square foot building at 1206 Eska Way has been submitted 
and is being reviewed by City Staff. 

 

• An Adjustment Application to allow a 10% deviation from the fence setback at 
1157 Bedlington Terrace representing a 6” adjustment to the fence setback 
from 5’ to 4’-6” has been submitted and is being reviewed by City Staff. 

 

• A Design Review application to demolish and replace the existing dental 
office and dwelling unit with a 4,566 square foot building that will be a dental 
office with one dwelling unit at 411 North Water Street has been submitted 
and is being reviewed by City Staff. 

 

79



SILVERTON POLICE ACTIVITY REPORT Dec-23
CALLS FOR SERVICE DEC YTD ARRESTS DEC YTD CITATIONS DEC YTD
Arson 0 1 Arson 0 2 Traffic Crimes
Assist Other Agency 25 269 Assault/Harassment 7 44 DUII 7 60
Attempt to Locate 9 160 Burglary 1 8 DWS-Misd./Felony Level 2 28
Auto Theft/Including Attempt 0 14 Drug 0 10 Traffic Violations
Burglary 3 20 Forgery/Fraud/Counterfeit 0 7 All Other 105 1388
Deaths/Natural 1 15 Juv-Curfew 0 0 Warnings 51 572
Emotionally Disturbed Person 8 61 Runaway 0 1 Violations
Disturbance 5 99 Kidnap 0 0 MIP Alcohol 0 3
Family Disturbance 16 110 Furnishing Liquor 0 1 MIP Marijuana 0 3
Fraud/Forgery/Counterfeit 3 47 Menacing 0 6 PCS Schedule I-IV 0 2
Harassment/Assault 3 74 Murder/Criminal Death 0 0 Civil Infractions
Ordinance Violations 49 439 Rape 0 2 Dogs-Noise/Leash/Vicious 0 5
Prowler/Trespass 14 146 Robbery 0 0
Public Assist 42 477 Sex Crimes/Other 0 7 TOTAL CITATIONS ISSUED 165 2063
Rape 0 2 Stalking 0 0
Robbery/Including Attempts 0 1 Theft 6 51
Runaway 2 25 Trespassing 1 20
School Resource 40 341 UUMV 0 2 3 YEAR COMPARISON 2021 2022 2023
Sex Crimes 3 19 Vandalism 1 20 Arson 1 0 1
Shots Fired 0 6 Violation of Court Orders 9 243 Auto Theft/Include Attempts 39 53 14
Stalking 0 1 Weapons Violations 1 15 Burglary 15 13 20
Suicide/ Including Attempts 3 39 Misc./Other Crimes 20 222 School Resource 131 242 341
Suspicious  58 786 Sex Crimes 18 22 19
Theft/Including Attempts 13 152 Rape 1 1 2
Weapons 0 0 JUVENILE ARRESTS 5 41 Robbery 0 1 1
Vandalism 7 79 ADULT ARRESTS 41 649 Vandalism 55 82 79
Misc./Other 340 4272 TOTAL ARRESTS 46 691

CALLS FOR SERVICE 5048 5308 7694
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 644 7694 TOTAL ARRESTS 458 559 691

TOTAL CITATIONS 1489 3153 2063

80



 

December 
2023 Monthly Statistics: Calls For Service Misc./Other Breakdown 

911 Investigation 5 
Alarm – Burglary 18 
Area Check 55 
Bar Tavern Check 2 
Civil Situation 6 
Crash – Hit and Run 2 
Crash – Injury 6 
Crash – Non Injury 7 
DUII 7 
Elude 1 
Extra Patrol 8 
Fight 2 
Field Interview 17 
Fireworks 1 
Foot patrol 2 
Insecure Premise 12 
Intoxicated Subject 1 
Missing – Child/Elder 1 
Narcotic Investigation 6 
Property – Lost/Found 7 
Reckless Driving 5 
Restraining Order Violation 1 
Traffic Assist 6 
Traffic Stop 145 
Warrant Service 6 
Welfare Check 11 
 

81



City of Silverton 
Public Works Department 
 

 

MEMO  
 
DATE:  January 25, 2024  
FROM:   Travis Sperle, Public Works Director 
TO:    Cory Misley, City Manager; City Council Members 
RE:   Public Works Department February 5, 2024, City Council Meeting Update 
 
ENGINEERING | ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
 
Public Projects: 

• Silver Creek Intake | Supply Line (EDA Grant): Pumps have been installed.  Waiting for electrical 
to be completed. 

• ASR Study:  Water Resources Commission approved a $250,000 grant for this study at their 
June 15-16 meeting.  The agreement between the City and OWRD is with the City Manager. 

•  WWTP Screw Press Project: Is moving forward. 
• Civic Center: Project under construction and being reviewed by City Staff.  Contractor working 

on new curb and sidewalk.  Final paving is set for spring of 2024 for Water Streets.  
• 2nd Street Reconstruction: Work on curb and sidewalk on Mill and Whittier graded and staked. 

Plan in place for over excavation of 2nd street road base.   
• WWTP Blowers Project: Contractor has started work on instrumentation portion of project.  

Blowers are not expected to arrive until December. 
• Silverton Overlay Project:  Project is completed.  
• WWTP UV Screen Project: bar screen at the WWTP upstream of the UV units is moving forward.  
• Sewer CIPP Project: Work set to begin on 1/29/24, permits and traffic plans in place. 

Programs: 
• Banner reservations calendar full for the entirety of February and March.  

 

Private Projects: 
 
Residential (# of lots) 

• Pioneer Village Phase VI (38): PGE has completed streetlight installation. 
• Westside Gateway (30 PH 1, 34 PH 2):  Public Works Improvements are complete. 
• Habitat for Humanity Development (18):  Storm line on Schemmel Lane and Bauman Way 

complete, work on sewer line set to commence.  
• Paradise Village Subdivision (39): Contractor has completed utility installation on interior 

streets.  Sanitary sewer and storm sewer utilities on James Street started on 5/31/23. Sewer and 
Storm lines have passed all mandrel and vacuum testing. James Street paved and open, dry 
utilities being installed, prepping for final PW walkthrough.  

82



• Pioneer Village Phase VII (6): Sewer system being installed. Rough grading of road completed. 
Sewer laterals installed, storm and waterline installation to commence.  
 

Commercial 
• Silverton Hospital Expansion: Majority of public improvements completed, waiting for final 

striping and signage.  
• 115 S James Street (apartments): Public improvements completed; final walkthrough 

completed.  
MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
 
Street 

• Monthly street sweeping.  
• Responded to damaged street signs. 
• Pothole patching 
• Gravel road maintenance as weather allows. 

 
Sewer   

• Responded to customer sewer related calls. 
• Worked with contractors on new sewer service installations. 
• Service lateral replacements or repairs.  
• CCTV Coolidge St. sewer mainline. 

 
 
Water 

• Installed and changed out water meters for new construction and failed meters. 
• Completed monthly water meter reading routes. 
• Installed new water services for new construction. 

 
 

Facilities 
• Maintenance on buildings and grounds including equipment maintenance and vegetation 

management. 
• Pre-planning for new Civic Center needs. 

 
Parks 

• Maintenance on buildings and grounds including mowing and vegetation management. 
• Graffiti removal. 
• Leaf removal 
• Winterizing of park buildings, drinking fountains and sprinkler systems. 

 
  
 

 
 
WATER QUALITY DIVISION 

Water Treatment Plant 

83



• General Cleanup at water treatment plant under way. Usage has been about the same 
• Routine Quarterly Sampling 
• Abiqua Creek around 11cfs Water Plant Flow around 3.5cfs 
• New Emergency lighting installed on buildings and parking area. 

Wastewater Treatment 
• Treatment plant flows averaging less than 1 MGD, 
•  Oregon Garden New VFD Project is a work in process.  Waiting on a few crucial parts to complete 

project. 
• Blower Project. Still waiting for the new blowers to arrive. Instruments have been installed and 

are working, programming into SCADA still needed at this time. 
• UV Bar Screen Project is underway. Parts and equipment have been ordered. 
• Screw Press Project is underway. Reviewing of Submittals, parts and equipment are ordered. 
• DEQ Required Independent Study almost complete. Council Presentation of the report coming in 

December 
• NO VIOLATIONS  

 

Community Swimming Pool 
• Construction of the new Silver Creek raw water intake is underway. 
• Pool Cover installed the week of Oct 16-20 

   

84


	Item 2.1 - January 8, 2024 Minutes
	Item 2.1 - January 22, 2024 Minutes 
	Item 5.1 - League of Oregon Cities, High Functioning City Council Training
	Item 5.2 - Authorize The City Manager
To Amend the Contract with
M.L. Houck for $99,816 for
the Second Street
Improvement Project.
	Item 6.1 - Civic Center Change Order Ratification
	Item 6.2 - OLCC Liquor License for "The Curbside Italian Kitchen"
	Community Development Monthly Report
	Silverton Police Report
	Public Works Report



